








Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
Department of Curriculum & Instruction 

 
 

Vision and Mission 
 

The Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District’s Department of Curriculum & 
Instruction is dedicated to supporting the District’s vision that all students can 
succeed academically, feel secure on their educational journey, and cultivate 
their curiosity towards the ultimate aim of being college and career ready.  
 
The Curriculum and Instruction Department envisions students who are deeply 
engaged in their learning and who can analyze problems from many different 
angles and communicate effectively in a 21st Century world. It is committed to 
ensuring educators and leaders feel supported in their efforts to improve 
standards-based teaching and learning in an environment that celebrates 
transformational instructional practices that reach all students where they are 
academically, socially and emotionally. 
 
The Department of Curriculum & Instruction’s mission is to provide teachers 
with the time, resources, training and encouragement to meet their professional 
goals and continuous improvement as educators so as to transform the lives of 
their students through education.  
 

This mission will be accomplished by: 
 
1. Strengthening teaching capacity and leadership by providing time to plan 

successful lessons, assessing what works, and differentiating instruction. 
2. Ensuring teachers receive the resources for collaboration to create priority 

standards that can be taught within a viable curriculum. 
3. Creating teaching teams for collaboration, support and sharing 

transformational instructional practices and ways to create safe and secure 
learning environments. 

4. Supporting teachers and students as they reflect on their learning for 
continual improvement and growth. 



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
Vision, Mission, and Goals Curriculum & Instruction 

 
A vision: Your ultimate goal, how you see our students learning and our teachers teaching in the future. 
It paints a picture of what we can become and guides the collective direction of our district’s and our 
schools’ commitment to academics, college and career-readiness, and instructional practices that work. 
 
A mission: The ‘how to’ statement or action plan that helps districts or schools achieve their vision. 
Mission statements prompt change and growth. The mission is the touch point that can help a school 
determine whether what should be happening is in fact happening.  
 

Vision Mission Values Goals 

Hope Purpose What we 
value 

Collective 
Commitments 

WHY WHAT HOW HOW 

Clarifies Our Priorities Gives Us 
Direction 

Defines who 
we are 

Guides Our 
Behavior 

Our vision: 
 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School district and its schools 
envision teachers who: 
 
• Are experts in the craft of instruction and have deep knowledge 
of the content standards and how student growth and achievement 
are measured.  
 
• Are risk-takers in their instructional practices and are willing to be 
flexible with teaching strategies so as to engage all students. 
 
• Feel supported by the District and are given the time, curriculum 
and resources necessary to be effective teachers and stay current 
in their knowledge of state standards and instructional practices 
that work for the diversity of students they serve. 
 
We envision students who: 
 
 • Are engaged in classroom activities and work purposefully and 
with intention to access the skills to become college and career 
ready.  
 
• Are seekers of new knowledge that builds on past learning and 
take risks to challenge themselves academically and 
professionally. 
 
• Can analyze a problem from many different angles using 
evidence and facts and solve it using different strategies.  
 
• Are able to access knowledge and communicate their ideas 
clearly in many forms: written, oral, numeric, artistic, and digital. 
 
• Feel that the schools and classrooms are safe spaces for the 
central goal of learning and academic growth. 

Our mission: 
 
Sierra-Plumas 
Joint Unified 
School District 
and its schools 
provide teachers 
with the time, 
resources, 
training and 
encouragement to 
meet their 
professional 
goals, and 
continuous 
improvement as 
educators. 
Additionally, the 
Sierra-Plumas 
Joint Unified 
School District 
ensures that 
students and 
teachers possess 
high expectations 
around teaching 
and learning. 
 
 

Our values: 
 
Students’ 
success as 
scholars and 
as 
professionals 
 
The belief that 
all students 
can learn at 
high levels. 
 
Curriculum, 
teaching and 
learning are of 
high quality 
and serve 
diverse 
stakeholders 
of learners. 
 
Students feel 
safe in the 
school and 
classroom in 
order to 
access 
curriculum 
and grow as 
learners. 
 
 

Our goals: 
 
• Provide 
teachers with 
the time, 
training, and 
resources.  
 
• Create 
teaching teams 
for support and 
for 
communicating 
successes and 
challenges. 
 
• Ensure 
teachers 
collaborate to 
create priority 
standards that 
can be taught 
within a viable 
curriculum.  

 





Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2016/17Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - General FD   

1100 1,553,875.00 1,492,223.00 142,952.32 1,357,576.17 8,305.49-Teachers Salaries

1105 18.00 18.00 .00 Per Diem - Same Day Travel

1115 8,760.00 5,340.00 3,420.00 Extra Duty Hourly

1120 22,589.00 42,080.00 37,580.00 4,500.00 Certificated Substitutes

1300 215,062.00 215,102.00 18,072.78 198,851.58 1,822.36-Certificated Superv/Admin Sala

1310 16,002.00 10,000.00 1,000.00 9,000.00 .00 Teacher In Charge/Head Teacher

1900 38,115.00 38,115.00 3,239.80 35,637.80 762.60-Other Certificated Salaries

Total for Object 1000 1,845,643.00 1,806,298.00 165,264.90 1,644,003.55 2,970.45-

2100 176,965.00 169,555.00 25,363.33 148,134.25 3,942.58-Instructional Aides Salaries

2200 289,512.00 293,830.00 22,781.77 268,657.86 2,390.37 Classified Support Salaries

2201 56,298.00 44,899.00 4,922.81 47,286.13 7,309.94-Bus Driver

2205 53.00 157.00 104.00-Per Diem - Same Day Travel

2220 7,062.00 12,989.00 11,571.68 1,417.32 Classified Support Substitute

2300 82,241.00 82,759.00 6,944.59 77,515.49 1,701.08-Classified Sup/Admin Salaries

2400 136,355.00 137,121.00 18,306.51 123,497.56 4,683.07-Clerical & Office Salaries

2900 23,729.00 21,386.00 3,214.38 18,536.49 364.87-Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 772,162.00 762,592.00 81,533.39 695,356.46 14,297.85-

3101 299,139.00 347,212.00 19,161.76 183,206.47 144,843.77 State Teachers Retirement Syst

3102 5,450.00 6,825.00 196.69 1,559.84 5,068.47 State Teachers Retirement Syst

3201 8,031.00 8,071.00 823.25 7,463.41 215.66-Public Employees Retirement Sy

3202 84,436.00 85,384.00 7,732.67 78,612.83 961.50-Public Employees Retirement Sy

3212 5,644.00 5,588.00 500.51 5,202.79 115.30-Pers Pickup-Classified Employe

3311 4,963.00 5,151.00 340.03 4,227.71 583.26 OASDI-Certificated Positions

3312 46,533.00 45,722.00 4,726.22 41,276.77 280.99-OASDI-Classified Positions

3321 25,557.00 24,298.00 2,083.51 21,583.17 631.32 Medicare-Certificated Position

3322 11,112.00 10,776.00 1,136.86 9,849.52 210.38-Medicare-Classified Positions

3401 352,373.00 404,782.00 40,022.27 367,207.13 2,447.40-Health & Welfare -Certificated

3402 138,921.00 149,005.00 13,602.28 137,571.65 2,168.93-Health & Welfare-Classified Po

3501 1,340.00 947.00 82.64 1,628.12 763.76-State Unemployment Insurance-C

3502 541.00 390.00 40.76 340.84 8.40 State Unemployement Insurance-

3601 71,835.00 66,767.00 5,928.14 59,372.94 1,465.92 Workers' Compensation Insuranc

3602 29,823.00 28,366.00 3,048.49 25,986.22 668.71-Workers' Compensation Insuranc

3901 72,354.00 45,224.00 47,662.84 2,438.84-Other Benefits, Certificated P

3902 14,819.00 14,818.50 .50 Other Benefits, Classified Pos

Total for Object 3000 1,158,052.00 1,249,327.00 99,426.08 1,007,570.75 142,330.17 

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 6, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2017, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  2 2017  7:56AM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1105
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1115
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2205
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2220
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3212
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3321
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3322
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3901
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3902


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2016/17Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - General FD    (continued)

4100 100,000.00 104,861.00 104,662.54 198.46 Textbooks

4200 5,376.12 88.64 5,464.76-Books Other Than Textbooks

4300 26,973.00 34,014.00 3,528.99 20,983.18 9,501.83 Class Mat'l and Supplies

4301 5,000.00 5,000.00 369.43 9,678.43 5,047.86-Class Consumablel Mat'l

4302 9,500.00 9,500.00 900.58 8,858.91 259.49-Class Paper/Toner

4305 21,825.00 23,515.00 1,719.97 15,905.45 5,889.58 Other Student M&S

4320 42,495.00 42,495.00 7,974.37 42,053.25 7,532.62-Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 16,492.00 17,231.00 545.65 10,432.13 6,253.22 Office Supplies

4350 25,900.00 25,900.00 1,608.95 5,578.59 18,712.46 Vehicle Maint. M&S

4351 25,525.00 25,525.00 13,447.56 15,569.05 3,491.61-Vehicle FUEL

4400 30,148.00 27,311.00 3,065.53 70,568.00 46,322.53-Non-Capital Equipment (Up to $

Total for Object 4000 303,858.00 315,352.00 38,537.15 304,378.17 27,563.32-

5100 176,461.00 176,461.00 28,610.55 122,850.61 24,999.84 Subagreement for Services

5200 44,642.00 75,948.00 14,432.09 37,138.20 24,377.71 Travel & Conferences

5300 1,327.00 6,068.00 206.80 8,973.80 3,112.60-Dues & Membership

5400 55,080.00 55,080.00 53,030.85 2,049.15 Insurance-Fire, liability, etc

5510 90,183.00 90,183.00 16,955.65 73,241.03 13.68-Power

5520 12,813.00 12,813.00 2,502.56 4,239.16 6,071.28 Garbage

5530 64,350.00 64,350.00 24,599.94 35,400.06 4,350.00 Water

5540 65,000.00 65,000.00 18,307.56 36,692.44 10,000.00 Propane

5590 15,500.00 15,500.00 6,690.96 8,309.04 500.00 Miscellaneous Utilities

5600 94,512.00 106,450.00 38,054.66 44,944.40 23,450.94 Rentals, Leases & Repairs

5800 2,500.00 4,300.00 450.00 1,550.00 2,300.00 Services & Operating Expense

5810 7,078.00 7,078.00 11,998.50 4,920.50-Legal Expenses

5812 2,500.00 2,500.00 323.78 2,176.22 Board Election Expense

5840 17,000.00 17,000.00 7,700.00 9,300.00 .00 Audit Expense

5860 12,161.00 12,161.00 10,794.84 1,366.16 Solid Waste Tax

5890 437,634.00 447,395.00 150,728.04 286,947.31 9,719.65 Contracts/Servic

5899 4,584.52 6,655.03 11,239.55-SCOE Interagency Reimburse

5900 3,875.00 3,875.00 2,953.07 921.93 Communications

5910 17,252.00 17,252.00 2,733.23 4,128.39 10,390.38 Telephone-Monthly Service

5920 4,800.00 4,800.00 4,800.00 T Lines

5990 225.00 225.00 225.00 Other Communications

Total for Object 5000 1,124,893.00 1,184,439.00 316,556.56 759,470.51 108,411.93 

6200 114,545.00 134,582.07 45,156.93 65,194.00-Building & Improvements

6400 129,944.00 138,600.00 93,564.13 45,035.87 Equipment

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 6, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2017, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  2 2017  7:56AM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4305
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4351
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5510
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5520
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5530
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5540
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5590
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5800
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5812
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5840
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5860
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5890
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5910
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5920
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5990
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2016/17Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - General FD    (continued)

6500 209,420.00 109,875.00 14,780.00 95,095.00 Equipment Replacement

Total for Object 6000 339,364.00 363,020.00 149,362.07 138,721.06 74,936.87 

7110 104,450.00 104,450.00 6,248.25- 110,698.25 Out-of-State Tuition

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

7613 200,000.00 .00 Transfer to State Sch Bldg Fun

7616 61,553.00 61,553.00 61,553.00 Trans fr Gen Fund to Cafeteria

7619 300,000.00 275,000.00 275,000.00 Other Interfund Transfers Out

Total for Object 7000 666,003.00 441,003.00 .00 6,248.25- 447,251.25 

728,098.60 6,209,975.00 6,122,031.00 850,680.15 4,543,252.25 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 13 - Cafeteria   

2200 70,610.00 69,751.00 10,414.80 62,219.35 2,883.15-Classified Support Salaries

3202 7,635.00 7,128.00 738.58 6,549.26 159.84-Public Employees Retirement Sy

3312 4,377.00 3,937.00 606.76 3,508.80 178.56-OASDI-Classified Positions

3322 1,024.00 919.00 141.89 820.63 43.52-Medicare-Classified Positions

3402 13,840.00 13,773.00 1,384.04 12,388.70 .26 Health & Welfare-Classified Po

3502 49.00 35.00 5.21 31.09 1.30-State Unemployement Insurance-

3602 2,746.00 2,468.00 380.53 2,200.48 113.01-Workers' Compensation Insuranc

Total for Object 3000 29,671.00 28,260.00 3,257.01 25,498.96 495.97-

4340 7,924.00 9,011.00 958.92 4,237.94 3,814.14 Food Service

4400 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 Non-Capital Equipment (Up to $

4700 45,758.00 45,758.00 6,894.43 46,258.67 7,395.10-Food

Total for Object 4000 58,682.00 59,769.00 7,853.35 50,496.61 1,419.04 

5200 710.00 1,473.61 763.61-Travel & Conferences

5600 2,279.00 2,800.00 3,672.07 872.07-Rentals, Leases & Repairs

5800 1,256.00 1,256.00 21.28 288.28 946.44 Services & Operating Expense

5890 800.00 800.00 264.00 536.00 Contracts/Servic

5900 121.00 421.00 288.63 132.37 Communications

Total for Object 5000 4,456.00 5,987.00 21.28 5,986.59 20.87-

1,980.95-163,419.00 163,767.00 21,546.44 144,201.51 Total for Fund 13 and Expense accounts

Fund 40 - Dist Build   

6200 300,000.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 Building & Improvements

6500 200,000.00 200,000.00 200,000.00 Equipment Replacement

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 6, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2017, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 3 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  2 2017  7:56AM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7110
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7613
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7616
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7619
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=3322
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=4340
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=4700
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=5800
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=5890
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=13&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=40&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=40&p8=Fund&p7=6500


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2016/17Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

275,000.00 500,000.00 275,000.00 .00 .00 Total for Fund 40, Expense accounts and Object 6000

Fund 73 - Bechen   

5800 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 Services & Operating Expense

6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 .00 .00 Total for Fund 73, Expense accounts and Object 5000

1,007,117.65 6,879,394.00 6,566,798.00 872,226.59 4,687,453.76 Total for Org 006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 6, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2017, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 4 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  2 2017  7:56AM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92942&p2=6&p3=73&p8=Fund&p7=5800


Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
Minutes 

 

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING  
OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF 

  THE SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
May 9, 2017 

Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Loyalton, CA 96118 
Teleconferenced to Downieville School, 130 School St., Downieville, CA 95936 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER  

 
President MOORE called the meeting to order at 6:24 pm 
 
B. ROLL CALL  
 
PRESENT: Mr. Mike Moore, President 

 Ms.  Patty Hall, Vice President  
 Mr. Allen Wright, Clerk  
 Mr. Tim Driscoll, Member  
 Ms. Sharon Dryden, Member  

 
ABSENT:   None 
  
VACANT:  None 
 
C. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA as amended (Item 1617-182 pulled) 
 DRISCOLL/WRIGHT 
 5/0 
 
D. INFORMATION / DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
1. Superintendent’s Report 

a. CAASPP Update 
b. Facilities 

• SmartWatt – lighting retrofit, beginning at DVL 
Downieville Boiler - application process to DGS initialized 
 

2. Business Report 
a. Account Object Summary-Balance from 07/01/16 to 4/30/17 
b. Eighth Month Enrollments for the 2016-2017 School Year 

 
3. Staff Reports (5 minutes) 

Dr. Grant, Downieville Site Administrator, Katrina Bosworth interviewed for the K-4 
teaching position and pending board approval, was offered the job 
Tom Jones, Loyalton High School Site Administrator, spoke on testing; Next Gen 
Science Testing next year; AP testing in progress; Hiring:  Math position,  
Andrea Ceresola, Loyalton Elementary School Site Administrator, 
Science Fair, Kindergarten Round Up (33 registered), Lava Beds trip, Forest Service 
Poster Contest, Bee Workshop, Book Fair, Testing on May 23 

 
4. Board Members’ Report (5 minutes) 

WRIGHT:  Open House at Downieville was a success 
HALL:  Took students to Grizzly’s prom; took students to Nevada Union for a play. 



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District  
Minutes of the School District Governing Board 
Regular Meeting  
May 9, 2017 
 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
Minutes 

 

2 

MOORE:  Visited Loyalton High and Elementary 
 

5. Public Comment  
a. Current location - None 
b. Videoconference location- None 

 
A. CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Approval of the minutes of the Regular Board meeting held April 11, 2017 
2. Approval of Board Report – Checks Dated 4/1/17 through 4/30/17 
3. Review of BP/AR/E 5116.1, Intradistrict Open Enrollment (The Board shall annually 

 review this policy.  Education Code 35160.5, 48980) 
4. Authorization for Out of State Travel/Conference Request to Salt Lake City, Utah, for 

 Stephen Fillo, Downieville High School teacher  
5. Authorization to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding between Sierra-Plumas  Joint 

 Unified School District and Sierra County Office of Education, #2018-01D* 
6. Authorization for Superintendent to enter into 1) Tuition Agreement to Attend 

 Washoe County School District and 2) Tuition Agreement for Washoe County 
 School District Students to Attend School in an Adjoining District 

7. Approval of 2017-2018 Designation of CIF Representatives to League 
o Steve Fillo, Downieville High School 
o Katie Campbell, Tom Jones and Brad Campbell, Loyalton High School 

  HALL/DRISCOLL 
  5/0 

 
B. ACTION ITEMS  

 
1.     New Business 

  
1617-166 Acceptance of Letter of Retirement from Joanne Nunes, Loyalton High School Teacher  

DRISCOLL motioned to accept Mrs. Nunes’ letter of resignation with regret HALL 
seconded 
5/0 
 

1617-167 Authorization to fill 1.0 FTE social science teacher, Loyalton High School 
DRISCOLL/HALL 
5/0 
 

1617-168 Approval of Assignment of Michelle Clemo, .88 FTE Instructional Aide, 
 Loyalton Elementary, effective April 25, 2017 

WRIGHT/HALL 
5/0  
  

PUBLIC HEARING-LCAP  
 
1617-169 Public Hearing opened at 6:49 pm to receive public comment on the Proposed 

 2017-18 Local  Control and Accountability Plan and closed without comment.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING-SCOE Budget 
 



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District  
Minutes of the School District Governing Board 
Regular Meeting  
May 9, 2017 
 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
Minutes 

 

3 

1617-170 Public Hearing opened at 6:50 pm to receive public comment on the 2017-18  
 Proposed Budget and closed without comment  

 
PUBLIC HEARING-Proposition 30, Education Protection Account 

 
1617-171 Public Hearing opened at 6:51 to receive public comment on the use of Proposition 30 

funding for 2017-2018 and closed without comment 
 
 
1617-172 PUBLIC HEARING-Collective Bargaining Disclosure Statement opened at 6:52 

and closed without comment.  This is an opportunity for members of the public to directly address 
the governing board on the Collective Bargaining Agreement, Items 1617-173 through 178 listed 
on this Agenda under Action Items 

 
1617-173 Presentation of Sierra-Plumas Classified Employees’ Initial Proposal for the 

 2016-17 academic year.  The presentation is identical to County meeting. 
 
1617-174 Completion of Bargaining Sierra-Plumas Teachers Association, 2016-2017  

  Negotiations 
  DRYDEN/HALL 
  5/0 
 

1617-175 Completion of Bargaining, Administration, 2016-2017 Negotiations 
  DRYDEN motioned to agree to a 2% salary increase, effective July 2016 and a  
  hard cap of $17,536 on insurance for new hires/HALL seconded 
  5/0 
 

1617-176 Completion of Bargaining, Classified Employees, 2016-2017 Negotiations 
  WRIGHT motioned to agree to a 2.5% salary increase, effective July 2016 and  
  a hard cap of $17,536 on insurance for new hires/HALL seconded 
  5/0 
 

1617-177 Completion of Bargaining, Classified Management Employees, 2016-2017  
  Negotiations 

  DRISCOLL motioned to agree to a 2% salary increase, effective July 2016  
  and a hard cap of $17,536 on insurance for new hires/HALL seconded 
  5/0 
 

1617-178 Completion of Bargaining, Confidential Employees, 2016-2017 Negotiations 
  WRIGHT motioned to agree to a 2.5% salary increase, effective July 2016 and  a 

 hard cap of $17,536 on insurance for new hires/HALL seconded  
  5/0 
 

1617-179 Approval of Employment Addendum to Agreement with Dr. Merrill M. Grant,  
  Superintendent 
  DRYDEN motioned to stay with existing contract but approve the one year  
  extension (to year 2020).  



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District  
Minutes of the School District Governing Board 
Regular Meeting  
May 9, 2017 
 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
Minutes 

 

4 

  WRIGHT asked that this item be included for closed session for June 2017  
  board meeting and that an item representing the superintendent’s contract be  
  added to the June agenda. 
  DRYDEN withdrew her motion. No additional motion was made.  

 
1617-180 Authorization for Certificated Employees to participate in up to three Staff 

 Development Activities during 2017-18, designed by teachers for teachers 
 pursuant to the provision of SB1193, at least six hours in length, to be compensated 
 at the rate of $200 per documented Staff Development Activity.  

  (SPTA Collective Bargaining Agreement Article 3.11) 
  DRYDEN/HALL 
  5/0 
 

1617-181 Approval of 2017-18 Extra Duty Assignments 
  WRIGHT/HALL 
  5/0 
 

1617-182 Authorization for Superintendent to enter into an Addendum to Agreement with 
 Sierra Transportation** 

 
 APPROVAL OF BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS 

  WRIGHT motioned that 1617-183 through and including 187 be approved. 
  DRYDEN seconded. 
  5/0 
 
1617-183 Board Policy 4034, School/Office Closure Due to Emergency Conditions 

 (New) 
 
1617-184 Exhibit 5145.6, Parental Notifications, revision 
 
1617-185 Board Policy 6111, School Calendar, revision 
 
1617-186 Board Policy 6144, Controversial Issues, revision 
 
1617-187 Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6174, Education for English 

 Learners, revision 
 

C. ADVANCED PLANNING 
 

1.   Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on June 13, 2017, at Downieville School, 130 
School St., Downieville, CA 95936, beginning with Closed Session, as needed, at 5:00 
pm and the Regular Board Meeting following the Sierra County Board of Education 
meeting at 6:00 pm.   

 
 2.   Suggested Agenda items 

  
a. Superintendent’s Contract (sewesClosed Session) 

 
 



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District  
Minutes of the School District Governing Board 
Regular Meeting  
May 9, 2017 
 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
Minutes 

 

5 

D. ADJOURN at 7:11 pm  
 
 WRIGHT/HALL 
 5/0 
  
 
 
 
 ______________________                                     ____________________________________                                        
 Allen Wright, Clerk                                             Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 



ENROLLMENT BY SCHOOL MONTH
2016-2017

Loyalton Loyalton Loyalton Downieville Downieville Sierra Long Term
Elementary Jr High Sr High Elementary Jr/Sr High Pass Cont ISP TOTAL

Ending 2015-2016 181 63 87 22 21 9 included in site # 383
1st Day 2016-2017 177 57 97 26 23 1 included in site # 381
2016 CALPADS 173 → 155 23 23 2 included in site # 376

Month
September 1 179 57 97 23 23 3 included in site # 382

October 2 176 59 98 23 24 3 included in site # 383

November 3 173 60 98 23 23 3 included in site # 380

December 4 173 60 98 23 23 3 included in site # 380

January 5 177 59 98 22 24 3 included in site # 383

February 6 178 59 100 24 23 3 included in site # 387

March 7 178 59 99 24 23 3 included in site # 386

April 8 178 60 99 24 23 3 included in site # 387

May 9 179 60 97 25 23 4 included in site # 388

June 10 included in site #

2015-16 S-PJUSD SCOE Washoe
P2 ADA 362.36 0 11.26

2016-17 S-PJUSD SCOE Washoe
P1 ADA 360.66 1.73 14.87
P2 ADA 361.33 1.70 15.00

 

doc:Board/Attendance Summary 2016-17

Enrollment difference from June 10, 2016, to

May 19, 2017:  +5
Long Term ISP:
LES   9
LHS  3

SCOE P-2:
Extended Year     .85
Special Day Class .85

Prepared by sroberts 5/25/2017 Page 1



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 05/01/2017 through 05/31/2017

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00081584 05/10/2017 AIRGAS, USA, LLC 01-5600 TANK RENTAL LHS/DVL 101.56 

00081585 05/10/2017 AT&T 01-5890 PHONE SERVICES ALL SITES 35.51 

01-5899 PHONE SERVICES ALL SITES 18.53 

01-5910 PHONE SERVICES ALL SITES 377.67 431.71 

00081586 05/10/2017 B & C TRUEVALUE HOME CENTER 01-4320 Maintenance Supplies 15.11 

00081587 05/10/2017 BEHAVIOR CONSULTANTS INTERNATI ONAL 01-5890 PBIS TRAINING 320.00 

00081588 05/10/2017 REID BRACHER 01-5890 REIMBURSE FINGERPRINTING 25.00 

00081589 05/10/2017 CITY OF LOYALTON 01-5530 WATER AND SEWER - LOYALTON SITES 3,372.99 

01-5899 WATER AND SEWER - LOYALTON SITES 209.57 3,582.56 

00081590 05/10/2017 MICHELLE CLEMO 01-5200 BUS DRIVER TRAINING 46.01 

00081591 05/10/2017 DOWNIEVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY DIS 01-5530 Water 40.00 

00081592 05/10/2017 GOLD COUNTRY DISTRIBUTORS 13-4340 FOOD AND SUPPLIES 26.89 

13-4700 FOOD AND SUPPLIES 888.35 915.24 

00081593 05/10/2017 GRAINGER, INC. 01-4320 HEATER REPAIR 241.27 

LES Bathroom Fan 149.23 390.50 

00081594 05/10/2017 MERRILL GRANT 01-5200 MILEAGE 375.57 

REIMBURSEMENT 20.20 

01-5890 REIMBURSEMENT 15.00 410.77 

00081595 05/10/2017 CAROLINE GRIFFIN 01-4350 Reimbursment for Service on Ag Truck 139.92 

01-5200 Parking Pass Reimbursement 80.00 219.92 

00081596 05/10/2017 HUNT & SONS, INC. 01-5590 Heating oil 571.62 

00081597 05/10/2017 JOSTENS 01-4300 DIPLOMAS/COVERS 18.68 

00081598 05/10/2017 K 12 MANAGEMENT INC. 01-5890 ISP PROGRAM 548.00 

00081599 05/10/2017 MARIAN LAVEZZOLA 01-5600 TECH COTTAGE RENTAL 200.00 

00081600 05/10/2017 LES SCHAWB TIRE CENTER 01-4350 VEHICLE SERVICE 83.09 

00081601 05/10/2017 LIBERTY UTILITIES 01-5510 ELECTRIC - LOYALTON SITES 5,115.80 

01-5899 ELECTRIC - LOYALTON SITES 225.54 5,341.34 

00081602 05/10/2017 LOYALTON BOOSTER CLUB 01-4305 FUEL REIMBURSEMENT 159.70 

00081603 05/10/2017 MADDEN PLUMBING & HEATING,INC. 01-5600 HVAC UNIT REPLACE 10,384.35 

00081604 05/10/2017 MODEL DAIRY, LLC 13-4700 DAIRY PRODUCTS 568.88 

00081605 05/10/2017 MIKE MOORE 01-5200 PER DIEM AND MILEAGE 26.75 

76-9576 H/W REIMBURSEMENT 687.32 714.07 

00081606 05/10/2017 MOUNTAIN MESSENGER 01-5890 ADVERTISEMENTS AND PUBLIC 

HEARINGS

55.00 

00081607 05/10/2017 ACSA REGION 1234 01-5200 REGISTRATION 249.00 

00081608 05/10/2017 OFFICE DEPOT 01-4330 Office/School Supplies 65.33 

00081609 05/10/2017 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 01-5510 Estimated Electrical 2,288.94 

00081610 05/10/2017 PLAZA TIRE & AUTO SERVICE 01-4350 Vehicles Maintenance 452.84 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  2 2017  7:59AM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 05/01/2017 through 05/31/2017

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00081611 05/10/2017 PRO PACIFIC FRESH 13-4700 FOOD AND SUPPLIES 232.70 

00081612 05/10/2017 DOWNIEVILLE PTO 01-5200 WASC RECEPTION/SNACKS 542.33 

00081613 05/10/2017 QUILL CORPORATION 01-4330 OFFICE SUPPLIES 282.39 

00081614 05/10/2017 RAY MORGAN COMPANY 01-5600 COPIER AGREEMENT 132.49 

COPIER MAINT. LHS/LES 405.95 

01-5899 COPIER AGREEMENT 22.76 561.20 

00081615 05/10/2017 REED'S LOCKSMITHING, INC. 01-4320 KEYS 13.61 

00081616 05/10/2017 SCHOOL OUTFITTERS 01-4400 SCIENCE ROOM FURNITURE 2,330.79 

00081617 05/10/2017 SCHOOL SPECIALTY 01-4320 Cafe posting boards 165.37 

WHITEBOARD CLEANER 81.47 246.84 

00081618 05/10/2017 SEQUOIA FLORAL INTERNATIONAL 01-4300 Floral Supplies 165.49 

00081619 05/10/2017 SIERRA BOOSTER 01-5890 ADVERTISEMENTS/LEGAL/PUBLIC 

NOTICES

81.40 

00081620 05/10/2017 SIERRA COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS 01-5890 SNOW REMOVAL 1,231.12 

00081621 05/10/2017 SIERRA COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 01-5510 ELECTRICAL SERVICES FOR TECH 

COTTAGE

289.50 

00081622 05/10/2017 SIERRA HARDWARE 01-4320 Misc Supplies 57.96 

00081623 05/10/2017 SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-4320 CUSTODIAL & MAINT. SUPPLIES 49.32 

MAINT. SUPPLIES 36.20 

01-4330 Maintenance supplies 7.50 

01-5600 SHED PROJECT 127.32 220.34 

00081624 05/10/2017 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED 01-5890 BANK SERVICE FEES 30.00 

00081625 05/10/2017 SIERRA TRANSPORTATION COMPANY, LLC 01-5100 TRANSPORTATION 12,621.64 

01-5890 TRANSPORTATION 2,083.31 14,704.95 

00081626 05/10/2017 SMARTWATT ENERGY, INC 01-6200 LIGHTING 14,553.67 

01-9515 LIGHTING 727.68- 13,825.99 

00081627 05/10/2017 STAPLES ADVANTAGE 01-5890 MEMBERSHIP FEE 240.51 

01-5899 MEMBERSHIP FEE 80.17 320.68 

00081628 05/10/2017 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE ACCOUNTING OFFICE 01-5890 EMPLOYMENT FINGERPRINTING 64.00 

00081629 05/10/2017 CATA 01-5200 CATA Summer Conference 396.00 

00081630 05/10/2017 TERMINIX PROCESSING CENTER 01-5890 PEST CONTROL -LES/LHS 123.00 

00081631 05/10/2017 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INS. GR. 01-9535 MAY 2017 HEALTH INSURANCE 11,805.00 

76-9576 MAY 2017 HEALTH INSURANCE 64,836.66 76,641.66 

00081632 05/10/2017 U.S. BANK 01-4300 Adobe Creative Cloud 59.98 

INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES 65.95 

jump ropes 56.33 

01-4301 Classroom Supplies 10.71 

SCIENCE SUPPLIES 20.37 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  2 2017  7:59AM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 05/01/2017 through 05/31/2017

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00081632 05/10/2017 U.S. BANK 01-4301 Supplies 23.87 

01-4320 BUS DRIVER PORTFOLIO 28.38 

01-4330 ADOBE PRO SUBSCRIPTION 11.24 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 275.70 

WEBSITE/DOMAIN REG/ANTIVIRUS 10.94 

01-4350 VEHICLE REPAIR 177.62 

01-5200 POWERSCHOOL UNIVERSITY HOTEL 232.83 

01-5890 RENEWAL EXCH.SPJUSD.ORG 629.97 

WEBSITE/DOMAIN REG/ANTIVIRUS 9.05 

01-5899 ADOBE PRO SUBSCRIPTION 3.75 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 207.83 

RENEWAL EXCH.SPJUSD.ORG 209.99 

VEHICLE REPAIR 532.87 

Unpaid Sales Tax 18.41- 2,548.97 

00081633 05/10/2017 US FOODSERVICE, INC. 13-4340 CAFETERIA - FOOD AND SUPPLIES 40.68 

13-4700 CAFETERIA - FOOD AND SUPPLIES 1,203.15 1,243.83 

00081634 05/10/2017 VERIZON WIRELESS 01-5910 CELL PHONE SERVICE 116.90 

00081635 05/10/2017 VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC. 01-4305 FUEL FOR ATHLETIC TRIPS 1,457.35 

Fuel for Field Trips 48.96 

01-4351 BUS FUEL 1,506.48 

Fuel for Maintenance 138.16 

01-5200 Fuel 148.50 

01-5899 FUEL FOR MAINTENANCE 9.09 3,308.54 

00081636 05/10/2017 ALLEN WRIGHT 01-5200 PER DIEM AND MILEAGE 6.69 

Total Number of Checks 53 147,786.10 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

General Fund 49 79,319.88 01

Cafeteria Fund 4 2,960.65 13

Warrant/Pass Though (payroll) 2 65,523.98 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 53 147,804.51 

18.41 

147,786.10 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 3 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  2 2017  7:59AM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District









 2017-2018 EXTRA DUTY ASSIGNMENTS Athletics  

 
 
 
 

Position Stipend Personnel Personnel Personnel Personnel 

  Downieville LHS LMS 7th/8th LES K-6th 
          Coaching Assignments      

Athletic Director - Loyalton 
High/$2,500 per season x3/$7,500 cap 

 

7,500 cap   
Katie Campbell 

  

Athletic Director – Downieville/$500 

per team or $2,000 cap 
2000 cap Steve Fillo    

Athletic Director - Loyalton Elem Gr. 
6,7,8 

1000   Sheri Roen  

Varsity Football LHS 2000  Brad Campbell   

Assistant Varsity Football LHS 1500  Greg Marr   

Varsity Basketball - Boys 2000 Steven Fillo Tim Lysen   

J.V. Basketball - Boys 2000     

Varsity Basketball - Girls 2000 Steve Fillo Ben Davis   

J.V Basketball – Girls 2000  Stacey Hood   

7th Grade Basketball – Boys 500   J. Armstrong  

8th Grade Basketball – Boys 500   Dean Morgan  

7th  Grade Basketball - Girls 500   Sheri Roen  

8th Grade Basketball – Girls 500     

7th/8th Gr COED Basketball 1500 Steve Fillo    

Boys Baseball 2000  Bryan Griffin   

Girls Softball 2000  Brad Campbell   

Varsity Volleyball - Girls 2000  Laraine Sei   

JV Volleyball Girls 1500  Anne Fassbender   

Track 2000  Sue Gressel   

Tennis 1500     

Cheerleading Advisor-Season 2000  Bre Whitley   

Physical Fitness Coordinator District-
wide 

500  Cali Griffin 
District wide 

  

Cross Country Coach 500     

Golf Coach   Greg Marr   

      

      

      

Presented to the Governing Board: June 13, 2017; Doc: Personnel/2017-18 Extra Duty Assignment Personnel_Athletics_June 2017 
 



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL 
2017-2018 Extra Duty Assignments  

Presented to the Governing Board: June 13 2017;  
Doc:Personnel/ 2017-18 Extra Duty Personnel non athlete_June 2017 

 

Position Stipend LES  LHS DVL  

       
WASC LEAD  
    Loyalton High Self Study Visitation Year 
    Downieville High Maintenance Year 

 
$2,000 
  $500 

   
C. Dorsey 

 
 
M. McDermid 

 

Site Technology Coordinator 
    Loyalton  Elementary  
    Loyalton Junior/Senior High 7-12 
    Downieville K-12 

$1,500  
Joanna Haug 

  
 
B. Jaquez 

 
 
 
M. McDermid 

 

Teacher-In-Charge per semester 
    Loyalton Elementary 
    Loyalton Junior/Senior High 7-12 
    Downieville K-12 
   

$1,000  
Joanna Haug 
 

  
 
B. Jaquez 

  

Lead Teacher Downieville per month $1,000    R. Bolle  

Response to Intervention 
    Loyalton Junior High 7-8 
    Loyalton Senior High 9-12 
    Downieville K-12 
    Loyalton Elementary 

 
  $500 
  $500          
$500 

$1,000 

 
 
 
 
E. Folchi 

   
 
 
R. Bolle 

 

       

Friday Night Live  Program Advisor 
Friday Night Live, Club Live, Friday, Night Kids  
    Loyalton Elementary, Loyalton High 
    Downieville K-12 

 
 

$2,000      
$1,000 

 
 
E. Folchi  
 

  
S. Gressel 7-8 
S. Gressel 9-12 
 

  

     Tier 1=$500 
Tier 2=$1,000 
Tier 3=$1,500 
Tier 4=$2,000 
 

 

 
 



























SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Resolution No. 16-011 

 
METHOD OF ABSENCE VERIFICATION 

 
WHEREAS, when a student returns to school after an absence, he/she must present satisfactory evidence 
verifying the reason for the absence; and 
 
WHEREAS, absence due to illness or quarantine shall, in the first instance, be recorded on attendance 
accounting forms and in state school registers in the same manner as any other absence is recorded (5 CCR 
§422); and 
 
WHEREAS, any other absence, excused or unexcused, shall be recorded in the attendance/student database 
using an appropriate symbol to identify classifications of absences; and 
 
WHEREAS, the following methods may be used to verify student absences (S-PJUSD AR 5113): 
 
1. Written note, fax, email or voice mail from parent/guardian or parent representative. 
2. Conversation, in person or telephone, between the verifying employee and the student’s parent/guardian.  A 

written record shall be made, including student’s name, date(s) absent, date of conversation, reason for 
absence, name of parent and name of verifying employee. 

3. Visit to the student’s home by the verifying employee or any other reasonable method which establishes the 
fact that the student was absent for the reasons stated.  The employee shall document the verification and 
include the information specified in item #2 above. 

4. Physician’s Verification  
 
WHEREAS, the California Code of Regulations, (5 CCR §421) states any of the following persons may verify 
an absence due to illness or quarantine:  
 
1. A school or public health nurse. 
2. An attendance supervisor. 
3. A physician. 
4. A principal. 
5. A teacher. 
6. Any other qualified employee of the district or of the county superintendent of schools assigned to make 

such verification. 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board 
requires the above method for verification of absences, including those due to illness or quarantine. 
 
Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board 
on June 13, 2017, as follows: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
        __________________________ 
        Allen Wright, Clerk 



2017-2018 SPJUSD Budget 
Page 1 of 5

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
2017-2018 Budget  

Presented June 13, 2017 

Student Attendance/Enrollment 

Attendance: 
2013/2014 

P2 
2014/2015 

P2 
2015/2016 

P2 
2016/2017 

P2 
2017/2018

Proj 
2018/2019 

Proj 
2019/2020 

Proj 
Downieville Elementary 29.17 27.55 21.29 21.98 22.98 22.98 21.46 

Downieville Jr. High  5.74 6.77 8.62 9.94 9.92 4.92 6.92

Downieville Sr. High 13.86 11.54 11.35 11.69 13.30 15.12 16.15 

Loyalton Elementary 165.24 168.11 169.86 168.07 209.33 214.36 201.95 

Loyalton 7-8 42.58 49.22 60.97 56.04 59.80 47.01 48.79 

Loyalton High 90.97 88.80 86.70 92.71 94.62 96.71 102.75 

Sierra Pass – 
Continuation 

3.49 4.20 3.67 1.70 1.93 1.93 2.57

District Total 351.05 356.19 362.46 361.34 411.88 403.03 400.59 

Washoe Students ADA 13.34 11.36 12.24 15.00 15.00 15.00 13.67 
Supplemental Percent  
(*2-yr rolling average) 
(**3-yr rolling average) 

49.34% 46.86% 42.36%* 41.93%** 39.73%** 38.88%** 37.69%** 

Enrollment  377 372 381 387 420 420 415 

REVENUE 

Local Control Funding by Grade Span – No COLA 

Unduplicated as % of 
Enrollment 

Base 
Grade 
Span 

Grade 
Span 

Adjust Supplemental 
Grades K-3 ADA 7,193 748 

20
%

 o
f 

B
G

S 
X

 
U

nd
up

 
C

ou
nt

 o
f 

39
.7

3%
 

Grades 4-6 ADA 7,301 
Grades 7-8 ADA 7,598 
Grades 9-12 ADA 8,712 227 
Transportation  Add-on  of $488,250 
GAP funding 43.97% 

Revenue Remarks 

1. Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF):

a. COLA of 1.56% on state and local share only of Special Education, Child Nutrition, Foster 
Youth, Preschool, American Indian Education Centers/American Indian Early Childhood 
Education in 2017/18.

b. GAP funding of 43.97%

c. Minimum Proportionality Percentage of 6.34% or appropriately $261,949

d. Loyalton High, Downieville Elementary and High – Necessary Small School Funded

e. LCFF funding anticipated to be approximately $4,881,589.

f. Supplemental Grant funding is approximately 6% of LCFF revenue at $261,949
(continued)



2017-2018 SPJUSD Budget 
Page 2 of 5

a. Three years of Proposition 39 Energy Efficient Funds ‐ $315,000

b. STRS payment made by the State – approximately $140,600 (in addition to the District’s cost)
c. Lottery: Unrestricted (Non‐Prop 20) $48,000 * Restricted (Prop‐20) $13,500.

d. CTE Incentive Grant: $53,500

e. College Readiness Block Grant $75,000

f. 2016‐17 unspent Educator Effective Professional Development  allocation re‐budgeted

3. Federal Revenue:

a. Secure Rural Schools and Community Act: Not been reauthorized

b. The continuation of Forest Reserve funding is uncertain, preliminary budget includes an

estimated $80,000 anticipated revenue.

4. Other Local Revenue:

a. Consist of interagency services to the County, interest, and facility rental fees



2017-2018 SPJUSD Budget 
Page 3 of 5

EXPENDITURES 

1. Salary and statutory benefits include a retroactive 2.5% salary increase for certificated and

classified employees in 2016/17 – increased salary schedule costs included in 2017/18.

2. Increase cost for classified health insurance cap to $17,536.

3. PERS rate increase from  13.888% to 15.531%

4. STRS rate increase from 12.58% to 14.43%

5. Reimburse Sierra County Office of Education to provide a Loyalton Elementary School (LES) Site‐

Administrator full‐time, a .part‐time transitional kindergarten teacher, and various business

services

6. Adopted textbooks – approximately $64,000

7. Transfer of funds to Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects

a. LHS facility upgrades ‐ $75,000

b. DVL school HVAC ‐ $200,000

LCFF Sources; 
$4,415,098 ; 78%

Federal ; $485,186 ; 9%

Other State; 537,129; 
10% Other Local; $187,792 ; 3%

Total Resources $5,625,205

LCFF Sources

Federal

Other State

Other Local



2017-2018 SPJUSD Budget 
Page 4 of 5

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 
Fiscal Year Amount 

2012-13 actual (1,078,539) 
2013-14 actual 335,535 
2014-15 actual 628,784 
2015-16 actual (379,233) 
2016-17 projected (555,799) 
2017-18 projected (333,161) 

Projected Ending Fund Balance 
Fiscal Year Amount 

2012-13 actual 2,496,090 
2013-14 actual 3,022,867 
2014-15 actual 3,651,651 
2015-16 actual 4,030,884 
2016-17 projected 3,475,085 
2017-18 projected 3,141,924 

2017-2018 Full Time Equivalent 
Site Certificated Certificated 

Management 
Classified 
Management 

Classified 

District Office (DO) .81593 .85 1.00        4.125*  
Loyalton High (LHS) 9.500 1.00        4.44 
Loyalton Elementary 8.00 contracted       11.616** 
Downieville Elementary 1.00 Incl. in DO        4.283*** 
Downieville High 2.23376 Incl. in DO        2.025 
Sierra Pass/ISP .31593 Incl. in LHS  .833 
County Contribution 2.50 
Total 24.3657 1.85 1.00 27.322

* Includes maintenance at Intermediate School Gym and Home-to-School transportation
** Includes 2.60 FTE, Cafeteria Positions
***Includes .675 FTE, Cafeteria Cook

Certificated; $1,885,480 
; 30%

Classified; 776,089; 13%Benefits; 1,292,286; 21%

Books & Supplies; 
274,615; 4%

Serv & Operating; 
1,167,987; 19%

Capital Outlay; 360,075; 
6%

Out‐of‐State Tuition; 
104,450; 2%

Fund 13, Cafeteria; 
68,067; 1%

Fund 40 CapOut; 
275,000; 4%

Expenditures & Other Uses      $6,204,049

Certificated

Classified

Benefits

Books & Supplies

Serv & Operating

Capital Outlay

Out‐of‐State Tuition

Fund 13, Cafeteria

Fund 40 CapOut



2017-2018 SPJUSD Budget 
Page 5 of 5

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
FUND BALANCE 

JUNE 13, 2017 

1. Projected 2017/2018 Ending Fund Balance $3,141,924.

2. Components of 2016‐2017 Ending Fund Balance

a. Revolving Cash:  $3,400

b. Committed: Other than Post‐Employment Benefits:  $518,756

c. Reserve for Economic Uncertainty: $621,000 

d. Unassigned/Unappropriated:  $1,998,767

3. Reserves

a. Minimum percentage level recommended by State regulations

i. Fiscal Year 2017‐2018 is 4%,  or $248,162

b. Percentage Level Per Resolution 08‐011 to 10%

i. Fiscal Year 2017‐2018   $621,000

c. Unassigned Reserve above the recommended percentage

i. Fiscal Year 2017‐2018   $2,371,605

d. The reserve are above the minimum for the following reasons.

i. To have sufficient cash to pay payroll and payables when due

ii. To supplement the threat of the loss of Secure Rural Schools revenue

iii. For emergency facility needs – such as the plan for the replacement of

Downieville School HVAC system

iv. To pay for the increase of salaries  & benefits



Reviewed By:

$:
%:

Year: 16/17 17/18 Pos (Neg) % 16/17 17/18 Pos (Neg) % 16/17 17/18 Pos (Neg) %
Period: Est Actuals Budget Difference Change Est Actuals Budget Difference Change Est Actuals Budget Difference Change

Revenues
Revenue Limit Funding 8010-8099 4,508,334     4,881,589     373,255       8.28% -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! 4,508,334     4,881,589     373,255       8.28%
Federal Revenues 8100-8299 80,000          80,000          -                   0.00% 111,657        111,657        -                   0.00% 191,657        191,657        -                   0.00%
State Revenues 8300-8599 128,587        61,215          (67,372)        -52.39% 501,416        500,189        (1,227)          -0.24% 630,003        561,404        (68,599)        -10.89%
Local Revenues 8600-8799 233,784        233,784        -                   0.00% 2,454            2,454            -                   0.00% 236,238        236,238        -                   0.00%

Total Revenues 4,950,705     5,256,588     305,883        6.18% 615,527        614,300        (1,227)          -0.20% 5,566,232     5,870,888     304,656        5.47%

Expenditures
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 1,653,372     1,732,889     79,517         4.81% 152,926        152,591        (335)            -0.22% 1,806,298     1,885,480     79,182         4.38%
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 702,629        724,701        22,072         3.14% 59,963          51,388          (8,575)          -14.30% 762,592        776,089        13,497         1.77%
Benefits & Taxes 3000-3999 1,030,926     1,064,837     33,911          3.29% 218,401        227,449        9,048           4.14% 1,249,327     1,292,286     42,959         3.44%
Materials & Supplies 4000-4999 283,687        250,117        (33,570)        -11.83% 31,665          24,498          (7,167)          -22.63% 315,352        274,615        (40,737)        -12.92%
Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 1,104,022     1,105,137     1,115            0.10% 80,417          62,850          (17,567)        -21.84% 1,184,439     1,167,987     (16,452)        -1.39%
Capital Outlay 6000-6599 101,298        101,298        -                   0.00% 261,722        258,777        (2,945)          -1.13% 363,020        360,075        (2,945)          -0.81%
Other Outgo 7100-7299, 

7400-7499 104,450        104,450        -                   0.00% -                   -                   #DIV/0! 104,450        104,450        -                   0.00%
Other Outgo 7300-7399 (4,215)          (4,215)          -                   0.00% 4,215            4,215            -                   0.00% -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0!

Total Expenditures 4,976,169     5,079,214     103,045        2.07% 809,309        781,768        (27,541)         -3.40% 5,785,478     5,860,982     75,504          1.31%

Rev less Exp (25,464)         177,374        202,838        -796.57% (193,782)       (167,468)       26,314          -13.58% (219,246)       9,906            229,152        -104.52%

Other Sources/Uses
Transfers In 8910-8979 -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0!
Contributions 8980-8999 (159,400)       (167,468)       (8,068)          5.06% 159,400        167,468        8,068           5.06% -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0!
Transfers Out 7610-7699 336,553        343,067        6,514           1.94% -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! 336,553        343,067        6,514           1.94%

Total Other Sources (495,953)       (510,535)       (14,582)         2.94% 159,400        167,468        8,068            5.06% (336,553)       (343,067)       (6,514)          1.94%

Change in Fund Bal (521,417)      (333,161)      188,256        -36.10% (34,382)        -                  34,382         -100.00% (555,799)      (333,161)      222,638       -40.06%

Beg Fund Bal 3,996,501     3,475,084     (521,417)       -13.05% 34,383          1                  (34,382)         -100.00% 4,030,884     3,475,085     (555,799)       -13.79%
Adjustments -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                   -                   #DIV/0!
Adj Beg Fund Bal 3,996,501     3,475,084     (521,417)       -13.05% 34,383          1                  (34,382)         -100.00% 4,030,884     3,475,085     (555,799)       -13.79%

End Fund Bal 3,475,084     3,141,923     (333,161)       -9.59% 1                  1                  -                   0.00% 3,475,085     3,141,924     (333,161)       -9.59%
Non Spendable 3,900            3,400            3,900            3,400            
Restricted  -                   -                   #DIV/0! 1                  1                  -                   0.00% 1                  1                  -                   0.00%
Comitted 518,756        518,756        -                   0.00% -                   #DIV/0! 518,756        518,756        -                   0.00%
Assigned -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                   #DIV/0! -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0!
REU 619,000        621,000        619,000        621,000        2,000           0.32%

Unassigned 2,333,428    1,998,767     (333,161)      -14.28% -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 2,333,428    1,998,767     (333,161)      -14.28%

REU is: 10.1% 10.0%
Tickmark Legend

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
2017/18 June Budget

Gen Fund Budget Comparison Worksheet
Materiality Threshold

Unrestricted Restricted Total



2017/18 June Budget

$: 0
%: 0%

Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined

A B C D E F G H I

Revenues
Revenue Limit Funding 8010-8099 4,881,589      -            4,881,589       4,992,407     -             4,992,407     5,062,712     -               5,062,712      
Federal Revenues 8100-8299 80,000          111,657     191,657          80,000         110,907      190,907        80,000          110,907        190,907        
State Revenues 8300-8599 61,215          500,189     561,404          61,215         231,445      292,660        31,215          162,254        193,469        
Local Revenues 8600-8799 233,784        2,454         236,238          242,436       -             242,436        246,123        -               246,123        
Contributions 8980-8999 (167,468)       167,468     -                 (222,717)      222,717      -               (200,321)       200,321        -               

Total Revenues 5,089,120     781,768     5,870,888       5,153,341     565,069     5,718,410     5,219,729     473,482       5,693,211     
Expenditures

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 1,732,889      152,591     1,885,480       1,785,234     156,406      1,941,640     1,838,888     160,316        1,999,204      
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 724,701        51,388       776,089          744,020       52,673        796,693        763,822        53,990          817,812        
Benefits & Taxes 3000-3999 1,064,837      227,449     1,292,286       1,199,578     233,186      1,432,764     1,229,567     239,016        1,468,583      
Materials & Supplies 4000-4999 250,117        24,498       274,615          195,000       21,312        216,312        175,000        5,945           180,945        
Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 1,105,137      62,850       1,167,987       850,000       50,000        900,000        800,000        10,000          810,000        
Capital Outlay 6000-6599 101,298        258,777     360,075          -              47,278        47,278          -               -               -               
Other Outgo 7xxx's 104,450        -            104,450          104,450       -             104,450        104,450        -               104,450        
Other Outgo 7300-7399 (4,215)           4,215         -                 (4,215)          4,215          -               (4,215)          4,215           -               
Transfers Out 7600-7629 343,067        343,067          118,169       -             118,169        69,944          -               69,944          

Total Expenditures 5,422,281     781,768     6,204,049       4,992,236    565,070     5,557,306    4,977,456    473,482       5,450,938     

Rev less Exp (333,161)       -            (333,161)         161,105       (1)               161,104        242,273        -               242,273        

Change in Fund Bal (333,161)       -            (333,161)         161,105        (1)              161,104        242,273       -              242,273        

Beg Fund Bal 3,475,084      1               3,475,085       3,141,923     1                3,141,924     3,303,028     -               3,303,028      
Adjustments -               -            -              -             
Adj Beg Fund Bal 3,475,084      1               3,475,085       3,141,923     1                3,141,924     3,303,028     -               3,303,028      

End Fund Bal 3,141,923      1               3,141,924       3,303,028     -             3,303,028     3,545,301     -               3,545,301      
Non Spendable 3,400            -            3,400              3,400           -             3,400           3,400           -               3,400            
Restricted  -               -            -                 -              -             -               -               -               
Comitted 518,756        -            518,756          539,517       -             539,517        562,391        -               562,391        
Assigned -               -            -                 -             -               -               -               
REU 621,000        -            621,000          625,000       -             625,000        630,000        -               630,000        

Unassigned 1,998,767     1               1,998,768       2,135,111     -            2,135,111     2,349,510     -              2,349,510     

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District

Budget MYP MYP

Multi Year Projection
Materiality Threshold

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20





































































































































































































































Proposal  
 

Transitional Kindergarten/ Kindergarten Combination Class 
and  

Title 1 Teacher 
 

*Less crowded classrooms 
 
*Able to teach new curriculum to all students in a smaller group settings 
 
*Not only provides a TK classroom for students that qualify by their birthdates, but also a  
class for students that aren’t ready to begin Kindergarten but need a formal place to learn 

 
*Serving TK students to prepare them for kindergarten 
 
*Providing a TK/K combination class increases our TK numbers from 3 TK students to  
  11 TK Students 
 
*Beneficial to our Title 1 Funding, ADA for Transitional Kindergartners, and class size 
 reduction funding 
 
2017-2018 Registration 
 
Transitional Kindergartners:   11 
Kindergartners:     30 
First Grade (previous kindergartners): 19 
 
Total:       60 
 
Class Sizes without TK/K Teacher   Class Sizes with TK/K Teacher 
 
Mrs. Burns K/1 Combo:    Mrs. Burns K/1 Combo: 
 
Kindergarten:   15   Kindergarten:    11 
First Grade:   10   First Grade:   10 
Total:    25   Total:    21 
  
Mrs. Fisher K/1 Combo:    Mrs. Fisher K/1 Combo: 
 
Kindergarten:   15   Kindergarten:   11 
First Grade:      9   First Grade:       9 
Total:    24   Total:    20 
 
Total K/1 Students:  49   TK/K Combo: 
 
Total TK Students:    3   Transitional Kindergartners: 11 
       Kindergarten:      8 
       Total:    19 
 
Total TK/K/1:                      52   Total TK/K/1:   60 



 1 

PO Box 955 

109 Beckwith Road 

Loyalton, CA  96118 

 (530) 993-1660  

Fax (530) 993-0828 
www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
 
 
 
 

Transportation Services Safety Plan 
(Complies with Education Code §39831.3 EC) 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

TRANSPORTATION SERVICES RULES AND REGULATIONS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approved by the Governing Board January 13, 2015 

June 13, 2017, revision 

 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District’s “Board of Education is committed to equal opportunity for all individuals in education. 

District programs, activities, and practices shall be free from discrimination based on race, color, ancestry, national origin, ethnic group 

identification, age, religion, marital or parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, ge nder identity or 

expression, or genetic information; the perception of one or more of such characteristics; or association with a person or group with one 

or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.”  BP0410 

  

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Right

http://www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org/


 2 

 

Preface 

CALIFORNIA EDUCATION CODE 
 

§39831.3. (a) The county superintendent of schools, the superintendent of a school district, or the 

owner or operator of a private school that provides transportation to or from a school or school activity 

shall prepare a transportation safety plan containing procedures for school personnel to follow to 

ensure the safe transport of pupils. The plan shall be revised as required. The plan shall address all of 

the following: 

(1) Determining if pupils require escort pursuant to paragraph (3) of subdivision  

(c) of Section 22112 of the Vehicle Code. 

(2) (A) Procedures for all pupils in pre-kindergarten, kindergarten, and grades 1 to 8, 

inclusive, to follow as they board and exit the appropriate school bus at each pupil's school 

bus stop.    

(B) Nothing in this paragraph requires a county superintendent of schools, the superintendent of a 

school district, or the owner or operator of a private school that provides transportation to or from a 

school or school activity, to use the services of an onboard school bus monitor, in addition to the 

driver, to carry out the purposes of this paragraph 

(3) Boarding and exiting a school bus at a school or other trip destination. 

(b) A current copy of a plan prepared pursuant to subdivision (a) shall be retained by each school 

subject to the plan and made available upon request to an officer of the Department of the California 

Highway Patrol. 

  
 §39831.5. All pupils in pre-kindergarten, kindergarten, and grades 1 to 12, inclusive, in public or private 

school who are transported in a school bus or school pupil activity bus shall receive instruction in school 

bus emergency procedures and passenger safety. The county superintendent of schools, superintendent 

of the school district, or owner/operator of a private school, as applicable, shall ensure that the instruction 

is provided as follows: 

 Upon registration, the parents or guardians of all pupils not previously transported in a 

school bus or school pupil activity bus and who are in prekindergarten, kindergarten, and 

grades 1 to 6, inclusive, shall be provided with written information on school bus safety. 

The information shall include, but not be limited to, all of the following: 

  (A) list of school bus stops near each pupil’s home; (B) General rules of conduct at school 

bus loading zones; (C) Red light crossing instructions; (D) School bus danger zone; 

(E) Walking to and from school bus stops. 

 At least once in each school year, all pupils in pre-kindergarten, kindergarten, and grades 

1 to 8, inclusive, who receive home-to-school transportation, shall receive safety 

instruction that includes, but is not limited to, proper loading and unloading procedures, 

including escorting by the driver, how to safely cross the street, highway, or private road, 

instruction on the use of passenger restraint systems, proper passenger conduct, bus 

evacuation, and location of emergency equipment.  

 

Instruction also may include responsibilities of passengers seated next to an emergency exit. As part of 

the instruction, pupils shall evacuate the school bus through emergency exit doors. 

Instruction on the use of passenger restraint systems, when a passenger restraint system is installed, shall 

include, but not be limited to all of the following: 

 

 Proper fastening and release of the passenger restraint system. 

 Acceptable placement of passenger restraint systems on pupils. 

 Times at which the passenger restraint systems should be fastened and released. 

 Acceptable placement of the passenger restraint systems when not in use. 

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: HTML Preformatted, Left, Adjust space

between Latin and Asian text, Adjust space between

Asian text and numbers



 3 

 

(continued) Education Code §39831.5 

 Prior to departure on a school activity trip, all pupils riding on a school bus or school pupil activity bus 

shall receive safety instruction that includes, but is not limited to, 

 Location of emergency exits, and location and use of emergency equipment. Instruction also may 

include responsibilities of passengers seated next to an emergency exit. 

 The following information shall be documented each time the instruction required by paragraph  

 (1) Name of school district, county office of education, or private school;(2) Name and location of school; 

 (3) Date of instruction; (4) Names of supervising adults. (5) Number of pupils participating. 

 (6) Grade levels of pupils. (7) Subjects covered in instruction. (8) Amount of time taken for instruction. 

 (9) Bus driver’s name; (10) Bus number; (11) Additional remarks. 

 The information recorded pursuant to this subdivision shall remain on file at the district or county 

office, or at the school, for one year from the date of the instruction, and shall be subject to 

inspection by the Department of the California Highway Patrol.  

 

 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

 
Transportation Safety Plan Requirements 
 
 
The Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District is required to create and maintain a transportation 
safety plan that includes: 
 

 Procedures for students to board and exit the school bus safely at bus stop, school or other trip 
destination; determining if pupils require driver escort to cross street, highway or private road 
 

 Clarifies that the safety plan shall not require the use of an on-board monitor on the 
school bus in addition to the driver. 

 
 Provisions for the plan to be retained by the district, and made available upon the 

request of an officer of the California Highway Patrol (CHP). 
 

 Authorizes a school bus driver to stop the bus to load or unload pupils without 
activating the flashing red signal lights and stop signal arm under specified conditions, 
and after consultation with CHP. 

 
This plan must be maintained at each school site and be available for inspection by the CHP upon 
request. 
  

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Hanging:  0.85",

Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.73" + Indent at: 

0.98", Tab stops:  0.5", Left + Not at  0.69"

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Font color: Gray-80%

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt



 4 

General Rules for Parents/Guardians and Students 
 
Upon school registration the parent/guardian of all students not previously transported in a school bus 
shall be provided with written information on school bus safety by the school site office. The 
information will include: 

 General rules of conduct at school bus loading zones and red light crossing instructions 
 A list of school bus stops for each school near each eligible pupil’s residence. A copy of the 

bus routes, scheduled stops and times 
 Behavior of Students on School Buses 
 Walking to and from school bus stop 
 School bus Danger Zone 
  
2.1. Only authorized bus riders are permitted to ride the bus and they will be required to get 

on and off at their designated stop or other trip designation. An authorized bus rider who 
desires to get off the bus at a stop other than the normal stop is required to have a written 
permission note signed by his or her parent. Permission to get off at a different stop will only 
be granted if no change of bus is involved. Children who are not authorized bus riders will not 
be permitted to ride the bus even to accompany an authorized rider to or from school unless 
they receive permission from the superintendent or school site administrator in advance. 

 
3.2. Bus riders are encouraged to arrive at their bus stops no earlier than five minutes 

before the scheduled time of pick-up. Children who arrive at their bus stops too early and get 
bored while waiting may cause most behavior problems. Horseplay is not permitted at the bus 
stop. Respect the people and property at and around the bus stop and loading zones. 

 
4.3. Students are to wait in line completely off the paved surface of roadway for the bus. 

Students are to stand twelve (12) feet back from the bus as it pulls toward the curb and not 
move toward the school bus until it comes to a complete stop and opens its doors. 

a. Bus riders may not cross the street on which the designated bus stop is located 
but must wait in line on the opposite side of the road until the school bus driver 
personally escorts them across  

 
5.4. The bus drivers will not depart pick up stops before the scheduled time. Parents can 

set their clocks by accessing the internet (www.time.gov). 
 
6.5. The bus driver will make every effort to arrive at the bus stop at the scheduled time for 

pick up. If the bus arrives early, the driver will wait until the scheduled time before departing. In 
order to remain on schedule, the driver cannot wait at any stop beyond the scheduled pick up 
time. Take home times are considered more flexible than pick up times, and it is possible that 
some children will be delivered to their stops earlier than scheduled. This could occur when a 
driver bypasses bus stops of absent children. 

 
7.6. The bus driver has the authority to separate students and to assign students to specific 

seats as deemed necessary. 
 

8.7. Disembarking at a stop other than the student’s designated stop will be sufficient cause 
to suspend the student’s riding privilege. Bus drivers are required by law to load and discharge 
passengers only at authorized stops as listed on scheduled home-to-school or school-to-home 
routes or other trip destinations. Please Do NOT ask or expect a driver to stop at a location 
other than your child's assigned bus stop. No student shall be allowed to utilize any 
designated bus stop other than the student’s primary designated stop without the written 
permission of the pupil’s parent/guardian. The permission shall include: full name of the 
student, full name of the parent/guardian, home and/or work phone number and legal 
signature of parent/guardian giving the school this permission.  
 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Space After:  6 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left:  0.25", Bulleted

+ Level: 1 + Aligned at:  1" + Indent at:  1.25"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Not Strikethrough



 5 

9.8. If a student is hesitant or reluctant to get off the bus at his or her stop, the student will 
not be forced to get off. The student will either be returned to school or taken to the district 
office. 

 
10.9. Many special education Identified students must be met at the designated bus stop by 

responsible adults. If no one is available to meet the child, the bus driver completes the route 
and returns to the stop, takes the child back to school, or takes the child to the district office or 
Child Protective Services.  
 

11.10. Special needs students shall follow the same procedure for loading and unloading at 
school sites as for home-to-school students.  The driver shall not activate the flashing red light 
system where a pupil requires physical assistance from the driver or authorized attendant to 
board or unload the school bus; providing the assistance extends the length of time the school 
bus is stopped beyond the time required to load or unload a pupil that does not require 
physical assistance.  

 
12.11. All pupils in prekindergarten, kindergarten, and grades 1 through 8, needing to cross 

the street on which the bus is stopped, shall be provided escort service at those locations 
where traffic is not controlled by a traffic officer or an official traffic control signal. Grades 9-12 
escorting is permissive and may be required. 

 
a. The crossing light system (Ambers and Reds) shall be activated, as required, 

when the bus is stopped for the purpose of loading and unloading students if 
the vehicle is parked on a highway or private road, unless under the direction of 
a traffic officer. The lights DO NOT allow students to cross the roadway or 
highway unless the driver has exited the school bus and given the student 
direction that it is safe to cross. Students are to remain on the roadside until the 
driver gives the direction that it is safe to cross. Students are never to cross the 
roadway or highway behind the bus unless crossing at an official traffic 
controlled signal. 
 

b. Each student being escorted across the street is required to cross under 
authority of the driver after unloading from the bus and crossing in front of the 
bus.  
 

13.12. In order to ensure the continued high level of safety provided to our pupils and 
expected by the public, the . TransportationDistrict Transportation department will continue to 
educate school bus drivers, pupils and the public about the laws and dangers associated with 
loading and unloading of students. 

 
13. Each student on a school bus must behave in a satisfactory manner in order for the driver to 

remain alert to the many hazards of driving. The safety of all students is of primary importance; 
a student who behaves in an unsatisfactory manner may be denied transportation. Student's 
conduct at school bus loading zones and school bus stops must be satisfactory to allow for the 
safe loading and unloading at these locations. Parent reinforcement of these regulations will 
help considerably in maintaining a high level of safety and a low level of disciplinary problems. 
Parents/Guardians may be responsible for any damage to vehicles or property caused directly 
by their students. 
  

14. Students found to be in violation of the district’s bus conduct rules shall be subject to discipline 
in accordance to Board policy and administrative regulation.  The Superintendent or designee 
may deny a student the privilege of using school transportation upon the student ’s continued 
disorderly conduct or his/her persistent refusal to submit to the authority of the driver. 
(BP5131.1 and reference AR5131) 
 

  

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left,  No bullets or

numbering, Adjust space between Latin and Asian text,

Adjust space between Asian text and numbers

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 10 pt



 6 

BUS RIDERS ARE REQUIRED TO:  
1. Follow the instructions and directions of the bus driver at all times 
2. Be at their designated bus stop on time and stand in a safe place at the stop to wait quietly for the 

bus  (The bus will not wait for students at any stop) 
3. Enter the bus in an orderly manner and go directly to their seats 
4. Sit in their seat with their backs against the seat, facing forward, backpacks on laps, fasten any 

passenger restraints systems, and keeping the isle and emergency exit of the bus clear of all 
obstacles.  The bus driver may assign designated seats to the students 

5. Report any vandalism or damage to the bus to the bus driver 
6. Report lost or found articles to the bus driver 
7. Remain seated at all times when the bus is in motion 
8. Be courteous to everyone 
9. Walk to and from bus stops in an orderly manner without damaging property, disturbing the peace, 

or endangering themselves or others 
10. When waiting to board the bus, the student stays 12 feet away from the bus until it comes to a 

complete stop and the door opens to permit entry 
11. Never cross the street on which a bus is stopped unless escorted by the bus driver. Students must 

cross in front of the bus and between it and the driver 
12. Promptly leave the bus stop upon exiting the bus  
13. Keep the bus and the area around the bus stop clean 
14. Items left or lost on the bus are not the responsibility of the Driver, School or the District 
 

BUS RIDERS MAY NOT:  
1. Distract the bus driver 
2. Create loud noise 
3. Deface or tamper with the bus or the property of others; Parents must pay for damage caused by 

vandalism 
4. Put any part of their body or any item out of the window  
5. Use language or gestures that others might find offensive or rude 
6. Behave in any way which is abusive, illegal or dangerous  
7. Eat, drink, chew gum, use tobacco products, litter, spit, throw or toss any item inside of or out of 

the bus 
8. Bring animals or other pets on the bus, except licensed guide dogs 
9. Open or use the emergency exits except in an emergency 

10. Use cellular telephones or similar devices that disrupts the safe operation of the school bus (the 
bus driver may direct the student to no longer use the device on the bus) 

 
THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE NOT ALLOWED ON A SCHOOL BUS AT ANYTIME: 

 Animals, except for those allowed by law, insects, any drinks other than water, scooters, or any 
object or substance which might be dangerous or illegal 

 Food, except when on a school-related trip and approved by the driver 
 
BUS DRIVERS MAY ISSUE CITATIONS FOR FAILURE TO ABIDE BY THESE RULES: 

 A student’s bus riding privilege may be suspended for serious offences or multiple citations 
 Suspensions will only take place after consultations with the principal, driver, and parent 
 
Bus Surveillance System:  The Board believes that the use of surveillance systems on school 
buses will help to deter misconduct and improve discipline, ensure safety of students and drivers 
and prevent vandalism. Therefore, surveillance systems may be installed and used on school 
buses to monitor student behavior while traveling to and from school and school activities 
(BP5131.1) 
 

 

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11.5 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt



 7 

BEHAVIOR OF STUDENTS ON SCHOOL BUSES  
 Riding a school bus is not a right, but rather a privilege that can be denied if the following rules are willfully disobeyed:  
 1. Pupils transported in a school bus shall be under the authority of and responsible directly to the driver of the bus and 

the driver shall be held responsible for the orderly conduct of the pupils while they are on the bus or being escorted 
across a street, highway, or road. Continued disorderly conduct or persistent refusal to submit to the authority of the 
driver shall be sufficient reason for a pupil to be denied transportation. No bus driver shall require any pupil to leave the 
bus en route between home and school or other destinations. Requests of the driver are to be obeyed without 
discussion while a bus is enroute.  

 2. Students are expected to be at the bus pick-up point, waiting to board the bus in an orderly fashion.  
 3. At the discretion of the bus driver, a student may be assigned a specific seat, and shall not be permitted to occupy 

another seat without permission of the driver.  
 4. All students are to remain seated until released by the driver.  
 5. Students shall keep heads, arms, hands, and other parts of the body inside the bus.  
 6. Students shall not drop or throw material of any kind, either from the bus, or within the bus, or make offensive 

remarks to pedestrians or motorists.  
 7. Students shall keep books, packages, coats, or other objects out of the bus aisle. Feet shall be kept out of the aisle. 

No objects are permitted which impair the ability of the driver to operate the bus, or which obscure his/her vision.  
 8. Students shall not carry knives, flammable devices, or other hazardous materials or objects on the bus. Seeing eye 

dogs are the only animals that may be transported on a school bus.  
 9. Students are to speak in conversational tones only. Profanity is forbidden, as are playing musical instruments, 

whistling, participating in any commotion that might tend to distract the driver's attention.  
 10. No pupil shall interfere with another pupil, or molest the property of another student.  
 11. Students shall not eat or drink beverages on the bus during normal transportation. Eating and drinking on the bus 

may be arranged for field trips. Breakable glass objects may be transported on a bus only if they are contained in a 
suitable container that would minimize the hazard in the event of accident or breakage.  

 12. Use and/or possession of tobacco in any form is prohibited while riding a school bus. Automatic suspension from 
school will result from any violation of this regulation.  

 13. Any student found guilty of inflicting willful damage to a school bus will be denied transportation until the 
parent/guardian has paid the cost of repairs.  

 14. Students having a need to cross the road when boarding or leaving the bus shall do so only in front of the bus with 
the driver's permission after all vehicles have stopped or the roadway is clear and safe. Driver shall use flashing lights 
and shall accompany all elementary students who must cross the road to get home.  

 15. Pupils who refuse to submit to the authority of the bus driver shall be reported by the bus driver to the principal of 
the school the student attends as soon as possible after the misconduct occurs.  

 16. The principal of the school shall reprimand the pupil, and inform the parent or guardian of the offense and the 
reprimand. The principal shall also inform the pupil and his parent or guardian that if such misconduct persists, the 
pupil may lose the privilege of being transported by school bus, and/or the school may take other disciplinary action.  

 17. If immediate disciplinary action is required, the bus driver may reprimand a pupil, and, if the misconduct occurs on 
the home-to-school bus run, the driver may suspend the pupils involved in the misconduct from the bus run for the 
following school day. In such case, it shall be the duty of the driver to inform the pupil or pupils, the parents or 
guardians, and the school principal of such suspensions as soon as possible.  

 18. Students must present signed written permission from parents or guardians to the driver for any permanent or 
temporary change in their regular bus schedule.  

 19. All School Bus Incident Reports must be signed by a parent/guardian and returned to the bus driver before a 
student will be allowed back on the bus.  

 20. Video (surveillance) cameras may be used on school buses to monitor student behavior while traveling to and from 
school and school activities. The recording may be considered a student record and used in student disciplinary 
procedures or referred to local law enforcement as appropriate.  

 21. Driver or principal may call parent as a courtesy when small, minor behavior problems occur to help resolve the 
problem before it escalates.  

 
 Parents shall be provided with copies of this regulation, and shall acknowledge that they have read and 

understand these rules. Any parent who has a question regarding transportation or the above regulations 
should contact the school principal.  

 We have read and understand the rules for Behavior of Students on School Buses.  

Student’s Name:__________________________________________________ Date:_____________  

 Signature: Parent/Guardian         

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  -0.31", Right:  -0.23",

Space After:  6 pt,  No bullets or numbering, Adjust

space between Latin and Asian text, Adjust space

between Asian text and numbers, Tab stops:  -0.31",

Left

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

Formatted: Right:  -0.23", Space Before:  6 pt, After:  6

pt, Adjust space between Latin and Asian text, Adjust

space between Asian text and numbers



 8 

 Loading at a Designated School Bus Stop: 
 Driver shall approach the bus stop and activate the flashing amber warning light system, if so 

equipped, 200 feet before the bus stop 
 Once stopped, the driver shall activate the flashing red signal light system, as defined in 

Vehicle Code Section 22112 
 The driver shall ensure that the flashing red signal lights and stop arm, if so equipped, are 

activated before allowing students to enter the bus 
 In the event any pupils will need to cross the roadway upon which the bus is stopped, the 

driver shall escort them across the roadway. The driver shall use the approved hand-held 
“STOP” sign when escorting students 

 The driver shall require all students to walk in front of the bus as they cross the roadway upon 
which the bus is stopped 

 If a student drops papers or other objects while boarding the bus, he/she should get the 
attention of the driver. The student shall NEVER go under or near the school bus to retrieve 
objects. 

 The Drivers shall ensure that all students who need to cross the roadway/highway, upon which 
the bus has stopped, have crossed safely, and that all pedestrians are a safe distance from 
the bus.  The driver shall cancel the flashing red lights as soon as practicable and ensure it is 
safe before setting the bus in motion. 

 

Unloading at a Designated School Bus Stop: 
 Drivers shall be familiar with the proper procedures and requirements for the use of flashing 

red lights and escorting students across the roadway. The driver shall escort student 
passengers who attend a pre-kindergarten or elementary school or school up to grade eight 
(8), across the highway.  Grades 9-12 MAY be escorted. 

 This shall apply to public school that does not offer instructional beyond grade eight 
 The driver shall use an approved hand-held “STOP” sign (18” Octagonal “stop” sign) while 

escorting students 
 Drivers shall approach the bus stop and activate the flashing amber warning light system, if so 

equipped, 200 feet before the bus stop 
 The school bus driver shall identify the students who must cross the roadway/highway and 

prepare the students to disembark the school bus 
 The driver shall ensure the flashing red signal lights and stop arm, if so equipped, are 

activated and ensure it is safe to exit the bus 
 The driver shall require all students who are crossing the roadway to walk in FRONT of and 

between the bus and driver 
 If a student drops papers or other objects while exiting the bus, he/she should get the attention 

of the driver. The student shall never go under or near the school bus to retrieve objects 
 The driver shall ensure that all students who need to cross the highway or private road, upon 

which the bus is stopped, have crossed safely and that all pedestrians are a safe distance 
from the bus 

 The driver shall re-enter the school bus and immediately cancel the flashing red lights. 
 

Loading School Bus at a School Site: 
 The school bus driver may not activate the flashing amber warning light system, the flashing red 

light system and stop signal arm at any school bus loading zones on or adjacent to school 
grounds 

 The driver shall not activate the flashing red lights to unload the students at the school site 
 The driver will monitor the students at the school site to ensure orderly and safe exiting 
 When the students have disembarked, the driver will depart the school site when safe 
 The procedure will be the same for activity trips 

 
 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Underline

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Underline

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, Bulleted + Level: 1 +

Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) TimesNewRoman, 11 pt,

Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) TimesNewRoman, 11 pt,

Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Underline

Formatted: Left, Space After:  6 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, Bulleted + Level: 1 +

Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Bold, No underline

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, No underline

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, No underline

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space After:  6 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 1 +

Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Bold



 9 

School Activity Trip Safety Instructions 
Before departing on a school activity trip, all students riding on a school bus or student activity bus shall 
receive safety instruction which includes, but is not limited to:  (Education Code 39831.5) 
 

 Location of emergency exits 
 Location and use of emergency equipment 
 Evacuation Procedures 
 May include  responsibilities of passengers seated next to an emergency exit 
 May include the use of the passenger restraint system (lap/shoulder belt) 

 
The driver shall point out the location and functions of the fire extinguisher, first aid kit, and all exit 
locations prior to departing on the field trip and explain the school bus rules. 
 
During darkness, the driver shall ensure that the interior lighting is sufficient for passengers to enter and 
exit safely and whenever otherwise deemed necessary. 
 
Loading/Unloading at the Activity Destination Site: 

 Upon arrival at the destination, the driver will select an area where the bus can be lawfully 
parked and loading/unloading students can be reasonably controlled 

 The driver will provide instructions to the chaperone/coach(s) regarding the time and location 
where the group will assemble to reload the school bus 

 When it is clear and safe, the driver will have the students disembark the bus (The flashing red 
signal lights will not be activated) 

 When the group is accounted for and is ready to depart, the driver will depart when safe 
  

Loading/Unloading for Special Needs Students 

 Driver shall activate the flashing amber warning light system 200 feet before the designated 
stop, if so equipped, and pull up to the designated stop and secure the bus. Turn off the 
flashing amber lights 

 Once stopped, the driver shall activate the flashing red signal light system (Vehicle Code 22112) 
 When loading/unloading a wheelchair student, the flashing red lights shall NOT be activated. 

The driver will assist with the loading process and depart the bus top when safe.  
Safe Bus Operations 
California mandates the Governing Board of any district that provides student transportation to adopt 
procedures that limit bus operation when atmospheric conditions reduce visibility, as described below, 
and that give drivers of student activity buses discretionary authority to discontinue operation when it 
is unsafe. 
 

School bus operations shall be limited when atmospheric conditions reduce visibility on the roadway to 

200 feet or less during regular home-to-school transportation service.  Bus drivers for school activity 

trips shall have the authority to discontinue bus operation whenever they determine that it is unsafe to 

continue operation because of reduced visibility.  (Vehicle Code 34501.6) 

Operation of Buses During Periods of Reduced Visibility 
 
The Superintendent and Board of Education recognize that the safety of school bus passengers and 
driver is the most important part of school bus operations. Furthermore, the State of California 
(Vehicle Code 34501.6) has identified that a key factor in the safety of student passengers is the 
driver’s ability to suspend operation of the bus when visibility on the roadway becomes limited.  
Understanding that atmospheric conditions in a local area may change rapidly, and visibility may 
become limited to two hundred (200) feet or less over a majority of the roadways traveled by school 
buses going to and from home, the Superintendent shall have the authority to suspend or delay the 
operation of school buses until such time as the visibility improves. The Superintendent shall be 
notified by the designated point person or bus driver(s), if pupils are being transported to/from other 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Underline

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Bold, Underline

Formatted: Space After:  6 pt

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, Bulleted + Level: 1 +

Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Underline

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Underline

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Underline, Font color:

Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Not Italic,

Underline, Font color: Auto



 10 

schools, of any decision to suspend or delay the operation of school buses. The Superintendent shall 
notify the Site Administrators and District office personnel.  
At times when buses are used for school activity trips, the bus driver shall have the authority to 
suspend bus operations when reduced visibility affects the safe operation of the bus.  
The Superintendent or designee shall develop procedures for suspending bus operations pursuant to 
this policy.  
Legal reference:  Education Code §39831.5 Instruction on school bus emergency procedures and 
passenger safety; Vehicle Code §34501.6 School buses; reduced visibility  
 
Mechanical Breakdown 
When a school bus is disabled due to mechanical failure and students are aboard that require 
transportation, the relief vehicle should drive to the front of and pull in line with and as close to the 
disabled vehicle as possible Vehicle Code section 22112(d) states that a school bus disabled due to 
mechanical breakdown and/or the relief bus shall not activate the flashing red light system while loading 
and unloading passengers.  The drivers of both vehicles should activate the hazard lights prior to the 
loading and loading of passengers. 
 
Bus Evacuations & Safety Instruction 
All pupils in pre-kindergarten to grade 8, inclusive, who receive home-to-school transportation shall 
receive safety instruction that includes, but is not limited to proper loading and unloading procedures, 
including escorting by the driver, how to safely cross the street, highway, or private road, instruction 
on the use of passenger restraint systems, proper passenger conduct, bus evacuation, location of 
emergency equipment and may include responsibilities of passengers seated next to an emergency 
exit. 
 
As part of the instruction, pupils shall evacuate the schoolbus school bus through emergency exit 
doors. 
 
In an emergency it is up to the students and driver to stay calm. Students must listen to the bus driver 
and follow instructions carefully. 
 
If the students have to evacuate the bus, they must wait and follow the driver’s instructions.  Students 
must not crowd the aisle, but move toward the exit.  Secure loose clothing so it won’t be caught on 
door or any other part of the bus.   Leave ALL belongings on the bus.  Students should duck their 
head and bend their knees if they must jump form an emergency exit.  Everyone is to move to a safe 
location 100 ft. from the bus. 
 
This transportation safety plan will be made readily available to all school district personnel who drive 
school district vehicles and could find themselves in a situation where they would be transporting a 
student as a passenger.  
  

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 10 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Underline

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt



 11 

 
If there are any questions about the information contained in this document, please call the District 
Office at (530) 993-1660, ext. 37, 38, 40, 42, or 43.  
 
Operation Hours: 7:00 a.m. - 4:305:00 p.m. Monday - Friday 
In case of emergency, collision, or breakdown call appropriate personnel using the number listed 

above.below 

Have location, load size, and problem available.  

 

 Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

o Dr. Grant, Superintendent   (530) 993-1660 ext. 37 

 (530) 771-7926 cell 

o Tom Jones, LHS Principal     (530) 993-4454 x 203 

 

 Plumas Unified Transportation Department 

o Kyle Bakker, Transportation Director (530) 283-6545 ext. 5507 

o Brandon Kirk, Lead Mechanic  (530) 283-6545 ext. 5508 

 

 Sierra Transportation (Downieville Schools) 

o Doug Peterman, President   (530) 283-3230 

 Sierra County Sheriff    (530) 289-3700 

 Plumas County Sheriff    (530) 832-4242 

 CHP Quincy Bus Officer    (530) 283-1100 

 CHP Susanville     (530) 252-1900 

  

In case of emergency, (non-collision/breakdown) – Loyalton Schools 

 Plumas Unified Transportation Department 

o Kyle Bakker Brandon Kirk, Lead Mechanic  (530) 283-6545 ext. 5508 

 

In case of emergency, (non-collision/breakdown) – Downieville Schools 

 Sierra Transportation 

o Doug Peterman, President   (530) 289-3230 

 

Other Contact Numbers 

 USFS Sierraville     (530) 994-3401 

 CAL TRANS Sierraville    (530) 994-3410 

 CAL TRANS Beckwouth    (530) 832-4911 

 Road Information     (800) 427-7623 

 Crescent Tow     (530) 832-0323, 284-6231 C#375-7810 

 

Find additional transportation information at the transportation web site 

www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org 

 

 

 

SCHOOL BUS ROUTES ARE AVAILABLE ON THE DISTRICT WEBSITE  and are posted 
one week prior to the start of the school year 

 
http://www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org/upload/files/BUS_ROUTES/Bus_2016-17_All_Routes.pdf 

  

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

http://www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org/
http://www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org/upload/files/BUS_ROUTES/Bus_2016-17_All_Routes.pdf


 12 

 
 

School Bus Safety Plan/Safe Walking 

Walking to and from Bus Stops 
1. Go directly between the bus stop and home 
2. Plan the safest route with the fewest streets to cross 
3. If possible, cross streets and corners, using crosswalks if available. Look in all directions 

before crossing and when safe, walk across the street. Always obey traffic signals 
4. Watch for vehicles that might be making a turn 
5. Do not dart from between parked cars or shrubbery 
6. Never accept a ride from a stranger 
7. If possible, face traffic when walking on roads without sidewalks and always use 

caution 
8. Be extra careful during times of sunrise and sunset, bad weather and during darkness 

(wear light colored clothing or something reflective) 
9. Leave home early enough so you do not have to run 

10. Be at the Bus Stop a minimum of 5 minutes before the scheduled pick-up time 
 
Safe Tips for Parents 
The greatest risk is not while riding the bus, but approaching or leaving the bus. It is 
essential that automobile drivers know the rules: 
1. When backing out of a driveway or leaving a garage, watch for children walking or 

bicycling to school 
2. When driving in neighborhoods with school zones, watch out for young people who 

may be focused on getting to school but may not be thinking about safety 
3. Slow down. Watch for children playing and gathering near bus stops or walking in the 

street, especially if there are no sidewalks 
4. Be alert. Children arriving late for the bus may dart into the street without looking for 

traffic 
5. Learn and obey the school bus laws in California 
6. Always STOP when a school bus has activated their Flashing Red Lights, do not 

proceed until they are completely off and then proceed with caution 
7. Always slow down when a bus has activated the flashing amber warning light system 

and prepare to stop once the flashing red signal lights are activated 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Font: 20 pt

Formatted: Centered, Space After:  6 pt

Formatted: Space After:  6 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.19", Right: 

-0.2"

Formatted: Space After:  6 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.25", Tab stops: 

0.19", Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.19", Don't

adjust space between Latin and Asian text, Don't adjust

space between Asian text and numbers

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 10 pt



 13 

School Bus Danger Zone 
 
School buses are large commercial vehicles and are difficult to see around because of their size; 
therefore, they create blind spots where children may be present. Understanding the 12 foot danger 
zone area around the bus helps keep our children safe.  Students should never go under or in front of 
the bus.  Students should store items inside a backpack where they are less likely to be dropped 
under the bus. If any student needs to cross the roadway in which the bus is traveling upon, the driver 
shall escort the pupil across the roadway. 
 
Also slow your vehicle when you are around a school bus and stop when the red lights are flashing. 
Flashing amber lights on the school bus is a warning to slow down and stop for the subsequent red 
lights flashing signal system on the school bus. 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Doc:Bus/Transportation Service Safety Plan June 2017_fnl 

 
Formatted: Right



 

 

Amendment No. 5 
AGREEMENT NO. 2009-30D 

 
between 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
and 

Sierra Transportation Company, LLC (the “CONTRACTOR”) 
 
This document constitutes the Fifth Amendment, dated June 13, 2017, by and between 
the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District, (“District”), and Sierra Transportation 
Company, LLC, (“CONTRACTOR”) for Pupil Transportation Services. 

 
OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 

 
1. Compensation: $184,000.00 per year. Payment to be made in 12 monthly 

installments as follows: 
a. July 2017 through May 2018 (11 months): $15,333.34 
b. June 2018 (1 month):    $15.333.26 
c. July 2018 through May 2019 (11 months): $15,333.34 
d. June 2019 (1 month):    $15,333.26 

 
2. Terms:  Terms of the agreement extended two fiscal years to June 30, 2019. 

 
3. Diesel fuel cost:  If/when Diesel cost exceeds $3.50 per gallon compensation will 

be adjusted to cover the cost of additional fuel used for services provided to the 
District. 
 

4. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 

5. This amendment shall have an effective date of July 1, 2017. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Fifth Amendment to the 
Agreement on the day here first above written. 
 
“DISTRICT”      “CONTRACTOR” 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Sierra Transportation Company, LLC 
 
 
 
By_____________________________  By______________________________ 
Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent  Doug Peterman, Owner/Manager 
  
Date:  __________________________  Date: ___________________________ 
 
 
Approved by the Sierra-Plumas JUSD Board of Trustees on ______________________ 



S-PJUSD 2018-02D 

Agreement: Holy Family Parish / Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School Dist. Page 1 of 3  

FACILITIES USE AGREEMENT 
 

This facilities use agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between Pastor of 
Holy Family Parish, Portola, a corporation sole (“Parish”), and the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified 
School District (“the District”), according to the terms and conditions set forth herein.   
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, Parish owns and operates Holy Rosary Mission, a mission church of Holy 
Family Parish; and  
 
 WHEREAS the District uses facilities (including buildings on the premises and other 
materials such as chairs) at Holy Rosary Mission, free of charge, for numerous events related to 
student activities such as graduation ceremonies, senior banquet, sports banquets, drama, speech 
contests, advanced placement exams and senior projects; and  
 
 WHEREAS the District operates Loyalton High School on property adjacent to Holy 
Rosary Mission, which serves as the emergency center for the citizenry of Loyalton, and 
walkways that cross the premises of Holy Rosary Mission can serve as additional access points 
to Loyalton High School, thereby enhancing the ability of emergency personnel to provide a safe 
shelter at Loyalton High School; and  
 
 WHEREAS the parties desire to memorialize their agreement regarding removal of snow 
on walkway access to Loyalton High School and the use of the parking lot at Holy Rosary 
Mission by District-affiliated parties, and to have a use agreement that will govern the respective 
rights and responsibilities under the arrangement;   
 
 THE PARTIES NOW AGREE AS FOLLOWS:   
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. Mutual Obligations.  Parish agrees to permit the District to use the parking lot on 
the premises at Holy Rosary Mission (“the Parking Lot”), for overflow parking for District staff, 
parents, and students, on regular school days and during special events, subject to the terms and 
conditions set forth herein.  The District agrees, at its discretion as to timing and necessity, to 
assign a maintenance employee of the District to clear snow from the walkway and sidewalk 
along the boundary between Holy Rosary Mission and Loyalton High School.  
 
 2.  Use of Parking Lot:   

a. Parish agrees to permit the District to use the Parking Lot as overflow parking for 
the District’s officers, directors, employees, agents, and invitees (Parking Lot Users), on regular 
school days, and during special events.  The District agrees to provide Parish, in advance, with a 
list of dates of special events, and Parish will notify District if a particular date or time conflicts 
with a Parish event at Holy Rosary Mission.  In case of a conflict with a Parish event, District 
agrees that the Parish event will have priority use of the Parking Lot, and District agrees to select 
an alternate date (if any) for use of the Parking Lot pursuant to this Agreement. 



S-PJUSD 2018-02D 

Agreement: Holy Family Parish / Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School Dist. Page 2 of 3  

b. During any use of the Parking Lot, the District agrees to be responsible, as 
necessary, for supervising the parking of vehicles and cleanup of the Parking Lot afterward.  
District further agrees that on weekdays during winter use of the Parking Lot, District will be 
responsible for plowing snow so as to permit the parking of vehicles by Parking Lot Users.  

 
3. Prohibited Use.  The District understands and agrees that Parish facilities are not 

open to the general public, and any use by the District under this Agreement is strictly limited to 
the District’s invitees, in connection with classes and activities at Loyalton High School and 
District events.  The District further understands and agrees that the religious character of the 
Holy Rosary Mission premises must at all times be respected, and will ensure that Parking Lot 
Users refrain from disrupting private prayer or ongoing liturgies, and treat the Parish premises 
with appropriate reverence and respect.  

 
 4. Termination.  Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time, by 
providing written notice of termination to the other party thirty (30) days in advance of the 
intended termination date.  Written notice to the Parish shall be directed to the Parish office at 
P.O. Box 1077, Portola, CA 96122; written notice to District shall be directed to the District 
office at Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District, P. O. Box 955, Loyalton, CA, 96118. 
  

5. Damage to Lot.  The District shall be solely liable for any damage to the facilities, 
equipment, and grounds at Holy Rosary Mission, that may result from use of the Parking Lot by 
Parking Lot Users, other than normal wear and tear on the premises.  The District shall likewise 
be solely responsible for the safety of Parking Lot Users.   
 

6. Indemnification.  The District shall defend, indemnify, and hold Parish harmless 
from and against all claims, losses, expenses or damages to any person or property in or upon 
any Parish Premises, arising out of the District’s use of the Parking Lot under this Agreement, or 
any act, omission, or neglect of the Parking Lot Users.   
 

7. Liability Insurance.  The District agrees to maintain, in full force, at all times this 
Agreement is in effect, and at the District’s expense, a policy of comprehensive liability 
insurance, including automobile liability coverage, which would insure Parish against injury to 
persons, including death resulting therefrom, and property damage, from occurrences in or about 
the Parish premises or the use of or condition thereof, with a limit of no less than one million 
dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate.  Such 
insurance shall be primary and not contributing with any other insurance in effect for the 
additional insureds and shall be evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance and an Additional 
Insured Endorsement issued to Parish, prior to any use of the Parking Lot pursuant to this 
Agreement.    
 

8. Attorneys’ Fees.  If any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement is commenced by either party to this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled 
to recover from the other party, in addition to any other costs and relief that may be granted, the 
reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred in the action or proceeding by the prevailing party.   
 



S-PJUSD 2018-02D 

Agreement: Holy Family Parish / Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School Dist. Page 3 of 3  

9. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 
Parish and the District relating to the use of the Parking Lot.  Any prior agreements, negotiations, 
or course of conduct are of no force and effect.  Any amendment to this Agreement shall only be 
effective if made in writing and signed by both parties.  This Agreement does not take effect 
until signed by the parties.  
 

10. Assignment.  This Agreement may not be assigned, transferred or sublet without 
express written consent of Parish.  
 

11. Binding Arbitration.  The parties agree that any and all disputes, claims or 
controversies arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall first be submitted to a mutually 
agreeable mediator, for mediation.  If a dispute, claim, or controversy arising out of or relating to 
this Agreement is not resolved through mediation, then it shall be determined by final and 
binding arbitration in accordance with the commercial rules of the American Arbitration 
Association (AAA) or the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Service (JAMS) then in effect and 
the provisions of Code of Civil Procedure section 1280 et seq.  The parties agree that any 
arbitration award arrived at pursuant to this section will be binding on the parties, will be 
enforceable, may be entered in any court with jurisdiction, and will be subject to challenge and 
review only as set forth in Code of Civil Procedure section 1285 et seq.  This arbitration clause 
constitutes a waiver of the parties’ right to a jury trial.  The parties agree to share all costs of 
arbitration and to bear their own attorneys’ fees and expenses.   
 
 12.  No Presumptions.  The parties agree that no presumptions shall be deemed to 
exist in favor of or against any party as a result of the preparation or negotiation of this 
Agreement. 
 
 13. Governing Law, Severability.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of California.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement 
shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision.  
 
 

PASTOR OF HOLY FAMILY PARISH, PORTOLA, 
 a corporation sole 
 
 
Date: ____________________ ___________________________________________ 
 By: 
 
 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT  

 
 
Date:  June 13, 2017               ___________________________________________ 
 By: Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent  


	01_06_13_2017_SPJUSD_Agenda
	02_Vision_Mission_Process_CI
	SPJUSD CurriculumInstruction_Vision
	02_Vision_Mission_Process_CI

	03_SPJUSD-Loyalton-Approved Days
	04_SPJUSD May2017 ObjSumm
	Account Object Summary-Balance
	1
	6
	01
	
	
	
	5
	1000
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	6000
	7000





	13
	
	
	
	5
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000





	40
	
	
	
	5
	6000





	73
	
	
	
	5
	5000









	05_09_2017_SPJUSD Minutes
	C. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA as amended (Item 1617-182 pulled)

	06_Enrollments 2016_17_ninth month
	07_SPJUSD May2017 Checks
	Board Report
	1
	00081584
	00081585
	00081586
	00081587
	00081588
	00081589
	00081590
	00081591
	00081592
	00081593
	00081594
	00081595
	00081596
	00081597
	00081598
	00081599
	00081600
	00081601
	00081602
	00081603
	00081604
	00081605
	00081606
	00081607
	00081608
	00081609
	00081610
	00081611
	00081612
	00081613
	00081614
	00081615
	00081616
	00081617
	00081618
	00081619
	00081620
	00081621
	00081622
	00081623
	00081624
	00081625
	00081626
	00081627
	00081628
	00081629
	00081630
	00081631
	00081632
	00081633
	00081634
	00081635
	00081636

	2
	01
	13
	76



	08_SchPathways
	09_SSC
	10_2017-2018 Extra Duty  Personnel_Athletics_June 2017
	11_2017-18 Extra Duty Personnel_Non_Athlete__June 2017
	12_TaskOrder#1_DVLBoiler
	13_16-011_Method of Absence Verification
	14_SPJUSD 2017-2018 Budget,Narrative,Comparison,MYP
	SPJUSD 2017-2018 Budget Narrative
	17.18 SPJUSD Budget Comparison
	17.18 SPJUSD MYP
	17.18 SPJUSD SACS Budget
	17.18 SPJUSD SACS Budget Part 1
	17.18 SPJUSD SACS Budget Part 2
	17.18 SPJUSD SACS Budget Part 3


	15_Proposal for Transitional Kindergarten
	16_Transportation Services Safety Plan June 2017.fnl
	17_Sierra Transportation Amend No. 5
	18_2018_02D_Holy Family Portola



